
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance and Resources Committee of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & 

Drama 

 
Date: FRIDAY, 23 APRIL 2021 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING (ACCESSIBLE REMOTELY) 

 
Members: Vivienne Littlechild (Chairman) 

Graham Packham (Deputy 
Chairman) 
George Abrahams 
 

Lew Hodges 
Neil Greenwood, Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama 
 

 
 
Enquiries: Julie Mayer 

julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
 

Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: 
TBC 

 
This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical 

location following regulations made under Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020. A 
recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of the 
public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do 

not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on 
the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of 

the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes of the previous meeting. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
4. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE FINANCE & 

RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
5. MANAGEMENT DASHBOARD FOR THE NINE MONTHS TO DECEMBER 2020 
 Report of the Principal. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 7 - 14) 

 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
  
 
  
 

Part 2 – Non-Public Agenda 
 
8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the previous meeting. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 18) 

 
9. GUILDHALL SCHOOL BUDGET REPORT - 2021/22 
 Report of the Principal. 

 
 For Information 
 (Pages 19 - 26) 

 



3 
 

10. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
FINANCE & RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA 

 
Tuesday, 19 January 2021  

Minutes of the virtual meeting held at 10.00 am 
https://youtu.be/tZRPuSh1qa4  

Present 
 
Members: 
Graham Packham (Deputy Chairman) 
George Abrahams 
 

Lew Hodges 
Neil Greenwood 
 

In Attendance: 
 
Officers: 
Lynne Williams 
Jonathan Vaughan 
Jonathan Poyner 
Graeme Hood 
Nikki Cornwell 
 
Matt Lock 
 
Julie Mayer 
 

- Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
- Chamberlains/Guildhall School of Music and 

Drama 
- Head of Audit and Risk Management, 

Chamberlains 
- Town Clerks 

 
1. APOLOGIES  

Apologies were received from Vivienne Littlechild (Chairman). 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED, that – the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting 
held on 10th November 2020 be approved. 
 

4. ANNUAL FINANCIAL RETURN TO THE OFFICE FOR STUDENTS (OFS) 
The Committee considered the Annual Financial Return to the Office for 
Students, in accordance with the OfS requirement that the documents which 
make up the return are approved by a committee of the Governing Board prior 
to their submission. This year the return must be filed and signed-off by 31st 
January 2021. 
 
The External Auditors’ Management Letter (Appendix 2 to the report) had been 
received by officers the previous evening, along with a final version of the 
financial statements (Appendix 1 to the report) but they contained only minor 
drafting errors.   Both documents had been circulated to the Committee earlier 
in the day but the Chairman felt that this late circulation was unacceptable. The 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://youtu.be/tZRPuSh1qa4


Finance Officer explained that the External Auditors had worked to the original 
timetable and misunderstood OfS Guidance in respect of this year’s deadlines.     
 
In considering the Financial Statements to 31st July, the Committee noted the 
statement of comprehensive income which reflected the impact of Covid; i.e. - 
loss of the Summer School and programme of short courses, accommodation 
fees, transitional costs incurred in moving to on-line teaching and the period 
when face to face teaching resumed, but in smaller groups and with classes 
being run more than once.  The Committee noted a loss for the year of £2.58m, 
which had virtually eliminated the School’s reserves. 
 
In response to questions/comments it was noted that: 
 
a) Compliance with SORP could be referenced in more detail in the 

Governance Report, although it was noted that it had been included in the 
Internal Control Section.   The Finance Officer agreed to review this before 
submission.     

 
b) The resignation date of Shreela Gosh, as of the Board Meeting on 23rd 

November should be included. 
 
c) The private sector equivalent of an ‘assessment of confidence in on-going 

concerns’ was captured by the City of London Corporation’s External 
Auditors’ assessment of the City’s Cash Fund, and the School relied on the 
assurance given to the City Corporation in this regard.    

 
d) There was a proposal going through the City Corporation’s Committee 

process in respect of the extra funding required to help the School through 
the pandemic and recovery.  In common with all City Corporation 
Departments, the School had made a commitment to make 12% of savings.   
The Principal advised that the School’s position had been of concern to the 
OfS, but they now had confidence in the City’s commitment to the School 
and this was no longer the case.   

 
e) Risk Management was now a standing item on all School Committees and, 

as this improved the effectiveness of the Risk Register, it should be 
recorded as a systemic change. 

 
f) The Chairman had spotted a couple of some minor errors on the revised 

statements which would be corrected before submission.   
 
RESOLVED, that - The Finance & Resources Committee approve the return 
and authorise the Group Accountant to submit it to the Office for Students, 
subject to the comments at (a), (b), (e) & (f) above, and in accordance with the 
filing requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



5. MANAGEMENT DASHBOARD  
The Committee received a report of the Principal which presented the 
Management Dashboard for the 9 months ending 31st December 2020.  The 
Committee noted that this included an extraordinary grant from the City 
Corporation, in the sum of £1.35m, representing the additional amount required 
for the School to break even, having expended its reserves in supporting the 
Covid19 induced deficit.  The Finance Officer advised that the loss for the year 
was forecast to be approximately £3.6m, which was largely but not solely due 
to the Covid-19 pandemic.   The School expressed its gratitude to the City 
Corporation for its ongoing support.   
 
The Principal advised that meetings with the Chamberlain in early January had 
sought assistance with the Covid related deficit, together with the possibility of 
a grant of £1.5m for an investment pot.  Whilst the latter was under discussion, 
the grant to cover the deficit had been supported by the Chamberlain, provided 
that the School committed to 12% of savings, as referenced above.  The 
Committee also noted that the figures were compiled before the latest National 
Lockdown and the Chamberlain had accepted that there would now be a further 
increase in the deficit.   The Finance Officers advised that 140 students had not 
returned to their accommodation since the Christmas holidays and the current 
50% discount being offered would cost approximately £100k.   The Committee 
were asked to note that, should a full discount become necessary, the worst-
case scenario would be an additional £400k to the end of March 2021.    
 
The Principal stressed that the School was already very fiscally responsible, 
when compared to the rest of the sector, but the maintenance of a positive 
student experience must remain the highest priority.  
 
RESOLVED, That – the report be noted.   
 

6. PROPOSAL TO CHANGE REPORTING DATE TO THE OFFICE FOR 
STUDENTS  
The Committee considered a report of the Principal in respect of a proposal to 
change the reporting date to the Office for Students.  The Finance Officer 
explained that, up to and including the year ended 31st July 2020, the School 
had produced a set of Financial Statements for submission to the Office for 
Students (previously the Higher Education Funding Council of England).  Whilst 
it was a requirement of HEFCE that the accounts be produced with a 31st July 
year-end date, this was no longer the case for the OfS.    
 
The Committee noted that the change 31st March would align with the City 
Corporation’s year-end and the audit of the City’s Cash fund.  This might need 
a small adjustment to the Committee reporting schedule, as the statements are 
filed 4 months after year-end.  However, this would result in a more efficient 
use of resources during the late Summer and Autumn, as finance officers would 
be able to focus on forecasting and modelling for the following year’s budget.   
 
In response to questions/comments, the following points were noted: 
 

Page 3



a) The Finance Officer explained that this change in date would not affect 
accounting in terms of student fees, as they would continue to be captured 
by Management Dashboard reporting, and budget modelling is based on the 
academic year and apportioned across multiple financial years. 

 
b) In respect of the Trust, the Committee noted that a large part of the grant 

request would continue to be on an academic year basis and, whilst this 
could be discussed with the Trust, there would be no reason for them to 
change their requirements.  

 
c) The Finance Team would be able to use the time they currently spend each 

autumn preparing the financial statements to conduct additional analysis for 
the benefit of the School, such as unit cost per student.  

 
RESOLVED, that – the production of financial statements for the Office for 
Students, with a 31st July year-end, cease forthwith and instead the accounts 
be produced with a 31st March year-end, in common with the City of London 
Corporation’s accounting date.    
 

7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE FINANCE & 
RESOURCES COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no urgent items.  
 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
as follows:- 
  

Item Paragraph 

11,12 3 

  
 

10. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED, that – the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 10th 
November 2020 were approved as a correct record.  
 

11. ANNUAL TRANSPARENT APPROACH TO COSTING (TRAC) RETURN FOR 
THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA  
The Committee considered and approved a report of the Principal. 
 

12. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE FINANCE & RESOURCES COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
  
 

Page 4



13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no urgent items.  
  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 11.15 am. 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Julie Mayer 
julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Finance & Resources Committee of the Guildhall School 
of Music & Drama – for information 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and 
Drama – for information 
 

23/04/2021 
 
 
17/05/2021 

Subject: Management Dashboard for the nine months 
to December 2020 

Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

No 

If so, how much? £ 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

Y/N 

Report of: the Principal For Information 

Report author: Group Accountant 
 

 
 

Summary 
 

The Management dashboard showing the projected out-turn for the year to 31 March 
2021 is attached at Annex 1. 

 
 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to note the contents of the dashboard. 
 
 

 

 

Report author 
Graeme Hood 
Group Accountant 
 
E:graeme.hood@barbican.org.uk 
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC AND DRAMA

MARCH 2021 FINANCE REVIEW 

& 
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

Page 9



Better /

(Worse)

1.1  Paying for the School's day-to-day activities (the detailed revenue budget is shown on page 6)

Income 34,421 30,886 (3,535)

Expenditure 34,871 34,388 483

REVENEUE BUDGET - TOTAL NET INCOME / (EXPENDITURE) BEFORE TRANSFERS (450) (3,502) (3,052)

Transfer from Reserve 450 2,884 (6,103)

REVENEUE BUDGET - TOTAL NET INCOME / (EXPENDITURE) BEFORE TRANSFERS 0 (618) (618)

1.2  School Reserve fund - actual and forecast balances at the financial year-end

Other teaching costs

Premises

Other costs

Total Transfers from reserves

The 2020/21 financial year budget shows a net expenditure position before transfers of £0.450m, which it was agreed could be met with a transfer from 
reserves.  As at April 2021, the School is forecasting a net expenditure outturn of £3.502m, a worse than budget position of £3.052m.   At the start of 
2021, the Schoolagreed with the Chamberlain's department that it would use its reserves to the fullest extent possible to cover the anticipated shortfall 
arising during the year, which is largely driven by Covid-19. The City in turn agreed to provide an extraordinary cash grant of  £1.335m to support what 
was the projected shortfall at that time. At the same time the City agreed to set aside a further sum of £500k to support potential further Covid related 
losses in 2020-21 or 2021-22, as we approached yet another government imposed lockdown. The final outturn means that this additional sum will be 
required in full this year.

GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC AND DRAMA

Management Information - March 2021

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY - DRAFT

1. FINANCE
Budget 
2020/21

Forecast 
Outturn 
2020/21

£1,106

£3,977
£3,642

£2,884

£0£0

£500

£1,000

£1,500

£2,000

£2,500

£3,000

£3,500

£4,000

£4,500

31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/19 31/03/20 31/03/21

£'000

Page 10



2. SENIOR STUDENT FTE NUMBER PLAN 

4048 4720

12832 14537

4703 2640 5622 4061

0 6938

City of London Extraordinary Grant0 0 1335 3

19520 5622 31591 0

12237 16155 4

4492 5858 5

414 521 6

826 1471 1405

Other teaching costs1412 2302 2086 7

Premises 2552 3986 3945

Other costs 2332 27113 4002 8

TRANSFERS FROM RESERVES

2381 0

Total Transfers from reserves

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8. The reduction in expenditure on other costs of £1.259m reflects the cessation of activities onsite as a result fo covid-19 including catering, short courses and public performances and serves to partially offset the considerable reduction in earned income from those activities.

GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC AND DRAMA

Management Information

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

610 

649 
657 

682 
696 

 550

 570

 590

 610

 630

 650

 670

 690

 710

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Under - Graduate - FTE

344 

321 

308 

337 
330.5

 300

 310

 320

 330

 340

 350

 360

 370

 380

 390

 400

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Post - Graduate - FTE

35 

38 

35 

38 

44

 10

 15

 20

 25

 30

 35

 40

 45

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Research - FTE

989 
1,008 1,000 

1,057 
1,071 

 850

 900

 950

 1,000

 1,050

 1,100

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

TOTAL - FTE

Page 11



2. Current Financial Year (2020/21) - GSMD DRAFT Income and Expenditure Account

To period 12-21 (March 2021) NB: subject to further change

2019/20 GSMD Revenue Budget
Actual Full Year  

Budget
Forecast 
Outturn

B/(W) B/(W)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

INCOME

4,792 Funding Council 4,720 4,673 (47) (0.99%)

15,705 Tuition Fee and Education Contracts 17,512 13,712 (3,800) (21.70%) 1
4,703 Other Earned Income 5,390 4,228 (1,162) (21.56%) 2
6,548 City of London Grant (Resources) 6,799 6,938 139 2.04% 3

City of London Extraordinary Grant - 1,335 1,335 #DIV/0! 3
31,748 Total Income 34,421 30,886 (3,535) (10.27%)

EXPENDITURE

Staff Costs

14,944  - Established Staff 15,699 16,411 (712) (4.54%) 4
6,167  - Professors 5,433 6,216 (783) (14.41%) 5
1,772 Professional Fees 1,471 1,578 (107) (7.27%)

2,179 Other teaching costs 2,302 2,170 132 5.73%

3,482 Premises 3,986 3,677 309 7.75% 6
4,409 Other costs 5,980 4,336 1,644 27.49% 7

32,953 Total expenditure (excluding transfers) 34,871 34,388 483 1.39%

(1,205)
Net income/(expenditure) - before transfers

(450) (3,502) (3,052) 677.70%

TRANSFERS FROM RESERVES

1,205 School General Reserve 450 2,884 (2,434) (540.46%)

1,205 Total Transfers from reserves 450 2,884 (2,434) (540.46%)

(0) TOTAL NET INCOME / (EXPENDITURE) - (618) - -

Notes
Commentary is generally provided for variances of £100k or over

1.

Notes

The impact of Covid-19 on fee income for the School has been highly significant this year. Higher Education 
fee income is reduced by £408k due to students electing to intermit or withdraw as a result of the move to 
online teaching and / or personal issues arising from the pandemic. Income from under-18 provision is 
reduced by £667k through a combination of reduced student numbers and discounts provided to those who 
have stayed to reflect a reduced offering online compared to what would have been delivered through face 
to face teaching. The cancellation of most of the short course offering has cost a further £1.414m in 
revenues including the loss of the summer school, the Preliminary Acting Course and significantly reduced 
output from Open Programmes, Coaching & Mentoring and Guildhall Live Events. Plans to introduce a range 
of income generating online courses have had to be deferred in order to prioritise the delivery of existing 
higher education programmes in new ways and account for the remainder of the shortfall in the year.

Page 12



Notes
Commentary is generally provided for variances of £100k or over
2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7. The reduction in expenditure on other costs of £1.644m reflects the cessation of activities onsite as a result 
fo covid-19 including catering, short courses and public performances and serves to partially offset the 
considerable reduction in earned income from those activities.

The savings on premises reflect reduced spend on utilities while the building was closed and reduced use of 
external space hire for face to face teaching while activities were moved online or paused entirely.

Other earned income is reduced by £1.162 million with the main drivers for the reduction being lost rental 
income of £1.05m (including student accommodation (having released students from the their contract for 
the Summer term in 2020 and reduced rent during the first quarter of 2021 following the closure of face to 
face teaching and restrictions on movement) and the lack of external hire of our spaces outside of term 
time); A £732k shortfall in other commercial income (including catering and ticket sales and reduced 
philanthropic giving) all of which was partially offset by an increase in grant funding to the School

The cost of establishment staff is £712k over budget. The targeted savings from phase four of the facilties / 
engineering review have been delayed due to the ban on redundancies during the pandemic and New posts 
in Registry (to support the School's access and participation agenda), Production Arts, Junior School, GYA 
Islington (funded by the additional grant income noted above) and the Audio Visual department (to enable 
to development on online teaching across the School) were approved after the budget was set. Two 
permanent posts approved for the Jazz department in recognition of increased student numbers in recent 
years were missed out of the budget in error. The contribution pay noted in the change to the core grant 
from the City also contributes to the increase in establishment staff costs for the year.

The forecast for professors is increased by £783k, largely driven by the need to deliver additional classes in 
smaller socially distanced groups where face to face teaching has been possible and to cope with the move 
to online delivery where face to face teaching has not been possible.

The core grant from the City has been increased to reflect the cost of contribution pay awarded centrally 
during the year. The extraordinary grant reflects the requirement for additional financial support from the 
City to cover the School's losses to the extent that they exceed the brought forward reserves. The figure 
shown here reflect what was known at the time of the original request in Q4 of calendar year 2020. 
However, as has been noted in the Executive summary, the School also advised the City that there was the 
potential for a further shortfall of c£500k in the event of additional Covid-19 related restrictions this year or 
next and the City agreed to put aside a further £500k that could be called upon if needed. The deficit as 
shown above means that this will now need to be drawn down in full.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	5 Management Dashboard for the nine months to December 2020
	Management Dashboard March 2021 Appendix

	8 Non Public Minutes
	9 Guildhall School Budget Report - 2021/22

